
 

 P a g e  | 1 

 

Regular Council Meeting 
Agenda 

 
Tuesday, February 20, 2024 at 6:30 PM 

8301 Westview Drive, Houston, Texas 77055 

 

The City Council of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas will meet on Tuesday, February 20, 
2024, at 6:30 PM in the City Hall Council Chambers at 8301 Westview, Houston, Texas 
77055. 
 
Any person may participate and address the City Council at the meeting by Zoom, telephone, 
personal appearance at City Hall, or by writing. Kindly submit your comments in advance of the 
meeting to Cassie.Stephens@HilshireVillageTexas.com. 

Join Zoom Meeting 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

1.A. Invocation (Council Member Crawford) 

1.B. Pledge of Allegiance 

1.C. Roll Call 

2. CITIZEN'S COMMENTS 
This is an opportunity for citizens to speak to Council about agenda and non-agenda items. Comments are 
limited to up to three minutes. If the topic the speaker wishes to address is on the agenda, the speaker can 
either speak at this time or defer comments until such time the item is discussed. 

Speakers must address the council at the microphone and give their name and address before voicing their 
concerns. 

Note: To comply with provisions of the Open Meetings Act, the City Council may not deliberate on items 
discussed under this agenda item. Items that cannot be referred to the City staff for action may be placed on 
a future City Council agenda. A copy of any prepared remarks or notes to be used and distributed by the 
speaker must be presented to the City Secretary prior to the beginning of the meeting. 

 

3. REPORTS TO COUNCIL 

3.A. Spring Valley Police Report 

3.B. Building Official's Report 

3.C. City Engineer's Report 

3.D. Fire Commissioner's Report (Mayor Buesinger) 

1



 

 P a g e  | 2 

3.E. Mayor Buesinger's Report 

3.F. City Secretary's Report: (City Secretary Stephens) 
Complaint Log 
Consent Agenda 
Research: Community Notices via Text Message  

3.G. City Treasurer's Report (City Secretary Stephens) 

4. CONSENT AGENDA 

4.A. Approve Disbursements 

4.B. Approve Minutes from the Regular Council Meeting January 23, 2024 

4.C. Approve Check Registers 

5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

5.A. Discussion and possible action to approve of City of Hilshire Village Resolution 
2024-255 designating the City Secretary to be the Investment Officer. 

5.B. Discussion and possible approval of City of Hilshire Village Resolution 2024-256 
denying the CenterPoint proposed rate application and consolidation.  

5.C. Discussion and possible approval to release a surety bond for the installation of 
Verizon Cell Nodes in the City of Hilshire Village right-of-way.  

5.D. Discussion and possible approval of City of Hilshire Village Ordinance # 836-2024 
amending the No Parking Zones.  

5.E. Discussion and possible action to approve of City of Hilshire Village Ordinance 837-
2024 striking the entirety of Hilshire Village Ordinance # 742 Juvenile Curfew to 
comply with Local Government Code Title 11., Subtitle C., Chapter 370., Section 
370.007  

5.F. Discussion and possible action to improve street lighting.  

5.G. Discussion and possible action regarding public participation in council meetings by 
video calls. 

6. DISCUSSION 

6.A. Discuss and possibly provide clarifications of City of Hilshire Village Ordinance # 
745 regarding tree regulations, constraints, objectives.  

7. ADDITIONAL COUNCIL COMMENTS 

8. FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS 
March 19th Regular Council Meeting - Presentation of Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Financial 
Audit 

2



 

 P a g e  | 3 

9. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

NOTES:  

*Agenda items may be considered in any order.  

* In the event a quorum of the city council is not present, the members who are present may 
meet as a sub-committee of the council to discuss the agenda items above. 

*City Council may recess into a closed meeting at any time during the open meeting to discuss 
any of the matters listed above as authorized by Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071 
(Consultation with Attorney), 551.072 (Deliberations about Real Property), 551.073 
(Deliberations about Gifts and Donations), 551.074 (Personnel Matters), 551.076 
(Deliberations about Security Devices), 551.087 (Economic Development), and 551.086 
(Certain Public Power Utilities: Competitive Matters).  

 

 

I, Cassie Stephens, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting and Agenda for 
the City Council of the City of Hilshire Village was posted in a place convenient and 
readily accessible February 16, 2024 at 3:00 p.m. 

This facility is wheelchair-accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Requests 
for accommodations or interpretative service must be made 48 hours before this meeting. 
Please contact the City Hall at 713-973-1779 or FAX -713-973-7793 for further information. 
 

3



4Item 3.A.



5Item 3.A.



INTRODUCTION

Hilshire Village Residents,

We hope the new year has gotten off to a good start for everyone. IRS scams usually increase with the 
beginning of tax season.  We want to remind everyone to remain vigilant against IRS phishing attempts.  Beware 
of anyone claiming to be with the IRS who contacts you by phone or email.  Real IRS agents will initiate contact 
through regular mail or in-person.  They will not threaten to revoke licenses or have people arrested.
Never provide your personal information, Social Security number, bank account information, or credit card 
numbers to anyone who calls and ask for it unless you are certain of who you are dealing with.  Remember that 
the IRS does not accept payment made via gift cards.  Below are a few more things to keep in mind while you go 
about your day to day activities.  As always we are available whenever you have concerns.

KEEP IN MIND:

 Be sure to lock all doors and windows in your home, when you are not on the premises.

 Lock your vehicle when it is unoccupied.

 Be cautious while in and around our school zones

Sincerely,

Chief M. Schulze

1025 CAMPBELL ROAD, HOUSTON, TX 77055  

PHONE: 713-465-8323 / EMAIL: DISPATCH@SPRINGVALLEYTX.COM
6Item 3.A.



1025 CAMPBELL ROAD,  HOUSTON, TX 77055 / PHONE: 713-465-8323 / EMAIL: DISPATCH@SPRINGVALLEYTX.COM

FEBRUARY 2024
DATE DAY SPECIAL DAYS FOR THIS MONTH

02-14-2024 WEDNESDAY VALENTINE’S DAY

02-19-2024 MONDAY PRESIDENT’S DAY 

7Item 3.A.



1025 CAMPBELL ROAD, HOUSTON, TX 77055 / PHONE: 713-465-8323 / EMAIL: DISPATCH@SPRINGVALLEYTX.COM

PPublic Service Announcement (PSA) From Our Officers:

Spring Valley Village PD offers a House Watch Program for residents while away on 
vacation or holidays.  Either call Dispatch or email the form found in this newsletter and 
on the Police Department website.

Lt. C. Menchaca

Please pay attention to school buses loading and unloading children during the morning 
and afternoon. When the school bus is stopped and the red lights are flashing, motorists 
must stop.  Also pay attention to school zones and crosswalks.  Let’s all do our part for 
the safety of our children.

Officer N. Hale

When you call in an emergency be sure to stay on the line, and be as calm as possible.  
Answer all questions. Give the dispatcher your address or describe your location, giving 
landmarks when possible. 

TCS D. Gonzalez

8Item 3.A.



TIPS TO PREP BEFORE 

LEAVING

 Close windows, blinds, curtains, shutters, 
lock all doors and garage.

 Set timers on interior lights. This goes a long 
way in deterring burglars, who often look 
for crimes of opportunity.

 Set your thermostat accordingly, for 
unnecessary energy cost, but can also  help 
avoid unforeseen problems with you HVAC 
equipment.

 Take out the trash.

 Run garbage disposal until clear.

 Secure all valuables.

 Lock all vehicles that are at home.

 Turn on home security system.

 Arrange for pets left at home.
9Item 3.A.



IDENTITY THEFT 

1025 CAMPBELL ROAD, HOUSTON, TX 77055 

PHONE: 713-465-8323 / EMAIL: 

DISPATCH@SPRINGVALLEYTX.COM

What are the 3 types of identity theft? 
 Financial Identity Theft
 Medical Identity Theft
 Online Identity Theft

Identity theft, also known as identity fraud, is a crime in which an imposter 
obtains key pieces of personally identifiable information (PII), such as 
Social Security or driver's license numbers, to impersonate someone else.

10Item 3.A.



SPRING VALLEY POLICE DEPARTMENT
HILSHIRE VILLAGE

CALLS BY TYPE:    01/01/2024 THRU 01/31/2024

1025 CAMPBELL ROAD, HOUSTON, TX 77055 

PHONE: 713-465-8323 / EMAIL: 

DISPATCH@SPRINGVALLEYTX.COM
11Item 3.A.



EMERGENCY NON - EMERGENCY
911 - FOR ALL EMERGENCY 713-465-8323

988 – NATIONAL SUICIDE & MENTAL HEALTH

SPRING VALLEY VILLAGE VILLAGE FIRE DEPARTMENT
SPRING VALLEY - CITY HALL 713-465-8308 VILLAGE FIRE DEPARTMENT 713-465-2323

SPRING VALLEY - PD 713-465-8323 VFD - NON-EMERGENCY 713-468-7941

SPRING VALLEY - PD FAX 713-465-3135

SPRING VALLEY - COURT 713-465-0333

HILSHIRE VILLAGE
HILSHIRE VILLAGE – CITY HALL 713-973-1779

IMPORTANT NUMBERS AT A GLANCE

1025 CAMPBELL ROAD, HOUSTON, TX 77055 / PHONE: 713-465-8323 / EMAIL: DISPATCH@SPRINGVALLEYTX.COM
12Item 3.A.



Status Address Construction Type
 

  
   

 

 

  

 

 

 
 

 

 

Active 1226 Glourie Dr New Construction
Active 1236 Archley New Construction
Active 1319 Pine Chase Remodel
Active 14 Pine Creek Swimming Pool
Active 8005 Anadell New Construction
Active 8373 Westview Interior Remodel
Active 1118 Glourie Interior Remodel
Active 1118 Guinea New Construction
Active 1126 Guinea Drive Swimming Pool
Active 1131 Wirt Swimming Pool 
Active 1218 Ridgeley Swimming Pool
Active 1242 Ridgeley Remodel & Drainage
Active 1242 Ridgeley Swimming Pool 
Active 1306 Glourie Dr New Construction
Active 1311 Friarcreek Ln New Construction
Active 1315 Friarcreek New Construction
Active 7 Pine Creek Remodel
Active 8002 Burkhart New Construction
Pending Submittal 1117 Guinea New Construction
Pending Submittal 1214 Ridgeley New Construction
Pending Submittal 1222 Glourie New Construction
Permit Pending 1201 Archley New Construction
Permit Pending 1201 Archley Swimming Pool
Permit Pending 1210 Hilshire Villas New Construction

13Item 3.B.



Plan Review Permit Log 

Date Permit Number Address Issued To  Amount 
Received Description / Scope

1 1/2/2024 HV-23-071AB 1241 Ridgeley Coerver Custom Homes 330.00$           Addition- Covered Patio
2 1/2/2024 HV-23-071D 1241 Ridgeley Coerver Custom Homes 460.00$          Drainage 
3 1/3/2024 HV-23-031H 1319 Pine Chase Aire First 330.00$          HVAC -Remodel
4 1/3/2024 HV-23-029FS 8002 Burkhart Brigade Fire Solutions 320.00$          Fire Sprinkler-NSFR
5 1/3/2024 HV-24-002T 1310 Ridgeley Dr RF Tree Service -$                Tree Removal - Dead 
6 1/4/2024 HV-24-003 7901 Westview Drive Strutton Plumbing 180.00$          Plumbing -Gas Test 
7 1/4/2024 HV-24-004 8301 Westview Generators of Houston -$                Generator
8 1/9/2024 HV-24-005 8315 Creekstone Cobb Comfort 160.00$          HVAC Replacement (duct work)
9 1/10/2024 HV-24-006 1222 Glourie JTB 330.00$          Demolition-NSFR

10 1/10/2024 HV-23-064E 14 Pine Creek Ln Arrow Electric 160.00$          Electrical Min
11 1/11/2024 HV-23-080P 1236 Arhcley Dash Plumb 530.00$          Plumbing - NSFR
12 1/12/2024 HV-23-100B 1118 Glourie ResCom Custom 4,844.06$       Remodel 
13 1/17/2024 HV-24-008F 8002 Anadell Griffin Fence 175.00$          Fence 
14 1/17/2024 HV-24-007 8373 Westview Merrick Renovations 210.00$          Remodel
15 1/18/2024 HV-23-043FS 1226 Glourie 1st Texas Fire 320.00$          Fire Sprinkler - NSFR
16 1/22/24 HV-23-082DEMO 1201 Archley MG Excavators 330.00$          Demolition - NSFR
17 1/23/24 HV-23-072POD 7 Pine Creek Lane Danamar 25.00$            POD
18 1/24/24 HV-24-009R 17 Hickory Shadows Innovations Roofing & remodeling 240.00$          Roof Replacement
19 1/29/24 HV-24-010H 8393 Westview King AC 160.00$          HVAC Replacement 
20 1/30/24 HV-24-011T 1209 Archley Drive MG2 Tree Service 25.00$            Tree Removal
21 1/31/24 HV-22-048I 1210 Ridgeley Dr Jelasio Salazar 240.00$          Irrigation -NSFR
22 1/31/24 HV-22-094SPP 1126 Guinea Drive Kalin Plumbing 280.00$          Plumbing -Swimming Pool

Permits
Addition 1
Drainage 1
Demolition 2
Electrical 1
Fence 1
Fire Sprinkler 2
Generator 1
HVAC 3
Irrigation 1
Plumbing 3
POD 1
Remodels 2
Roof 1
Tree Removal 2

Total 22

14Item 3.B.



Inspection Log

Log  # Address Permit # Inspection Type Result Date Inspector
23-389 1315 Friarcreek Ln HV-23-080B Drainage PASS 1/3/24 HDR
23-392 14 Pine Creek Ln HV-23-064SPE Bonding PASS 1/3/24 BBG
24-005 1201 Archley Dr HV-23-082 Tree Protection PASS 1/3/24 Cary Moran
24-003 1226 Glourie Dr HV-23-043E Electrical Rough In PASS 1/5/24 BBG
24-004 1311 Friarcreek Ln HV-22-078M Hood Vent PASS 1/4/2024 BBG
23-370 1319 Pine Chase Drive HV-23-031H HVAC Cover PASS 1/5/24 BBG
23-369 7901 Westview Dr HV-24-003 Gast Test PASS 1/4/24 BBG
23-371 1241 Ridgeley Drive HV-23-022B Frame PASS 1/8/24 BBG
23-372 1241 Ridgeley Drive HV-23-022H HVAC Cover PASS 1/8/24 BBG
24-007 1241 Ridgeley Drive HV-23-022P Plumbing Top-Out FAIL 1/10/24 BBG
24-008 8002 Burkhart Rd HV-23-029B Frame PASS 1/10/24 BBG
24-009 8002 Burkhart Rd HV-23-029E Rough PASS 1/10/24 BBG
24-010 8002 Burkhart Rd HV-23-029E Cover PASS 1/10/24 BBG
24-012 1222 Glourie HV-24-006UD Sewer Disconnect PASS 1/12/24 BBG
24-011 1241 Ridgeley Drive HV-23-022P plumbing cover PASS 1/10/24 BBG
24-013 14 Pine Creek Ln HV-23-064E Electrical-Underground FAIL 1/12/24 BBG
24-014 14 Pine Creek Ln HV-23-064E Electrical-Meter Release FAIL 1/12/24 BBG
24-015 8315 Creekstone Cir HV-24-005H HVAC-Cover & Duct PASS 1/12/24 BBG
24-017 1222 Glourie HV-24-006B Perimeter Fencing PASS 1/15/24 BBG
24-016 1226 Glourie Dr HV-23-043H HVAC-Cover FAIL 1/15/24 BBG
24-018 1236 Archley HV-23-080P Plumbing Ground & Sewe  FAIL 1/15/24 BBG
24-019 1315 Friarcreek Ln HV-22-071B Driveway Forms PASS 1/15/24 BBG
24-020 1236 Archley HV-23-080P Plumbing Ground & Sewer CANCELLED 1/16/24 BBG
24-026 1222 Glourie HV-24-006 Tree Protection PASS 1/17/24 Cary Moran
24-021 1210 Ridgeley Dr HV-22-048F Fence Final PASS 1/18/24 BBG
24-022 1222 Glourie HV-24-006 Silt Fencing PASS 1/18/24 HDR
24-024 1236 Archley HV-23-080P Ground & Sewer PASS 1/18/24 BBG
24-023 1306 Glourie Dr HV-23-007D Culvert FAIL 1/19/24 HDR
24-028 1126 Guinea Dr HV-22-094SP Steel Inspection (Swimming Pool) PASS 1/19/24 BBG
24-027 8315 Creekstone Cir HV-24-005H HVAC Final PASS 1/19/24 BBG
24-030 1210 Ridgeley Dr HV-22-048P Plumbing Final FAIL 1/22/24 BBG
24-029 1226 Glourie Dr HV-23-043H HVAC-Cover PASS 1/22/24 BBG
24-031 8301 Westview Dr HV-24-004 Generator Final - Electrical & Gas PASS 1/22/24 BBG
24-032 1210 Ridgeley Dr HV-22-048P Plumbing Final PASS 1/24/24 BBG
24-033 2 Pine Creek Lane HV-23-089F Fence Final PASS 1/24/24 BBG
24-034 1210 Ridgeley Dr HV-22-048M Vent Hood PASS 1/24/24 BBG
24-035 1210 Ridgeley Dr HV-22-048M Mechanical Final PASS 1/24/24 BBG
24-036 2 Pine Creek Lane HV-23-087E SP Electrical Final PASS 1/24/24 BBG
24-037 1210 Ridgeley Dr HV-22-048E Electrical Final PASS 1/26/24 BBG
24-038 1313 Pine Chase Dr HV-23-056H HVAC Final PASS 1/26/24 BBG
24-039 8005 Anadell St HV-22-091B Stucco/Lath PASS 1/29/24 BBG
24-044 1241 Ridgeley Drive HV-23-071D Drainage PASS 1/30/24 HDR
24-043 1306 Glourie Dr HV-23-080B Culvert PASS 1/30/24 HDR
24-040 14 Pine Creek Ln HV-23-064SPP Plumbing Ground PASS 1/30/24 BBG
24-041 14 Pine Creek Ln HV-23-064SPP Gas Test PASS 1/30/24 BBG
24-042 14 Pine Creek Ln HV-23-064SPD Yard Drainage FAIL 1/30/24 HDR

Inspections 
Cancelled 1
Failed 8
Pass 36

Total 45

15Item 3.B.



 

 

 

 

 

  
hdrinc.com 4828 Loop Central Drive, Suite 800 

Houston, Texas 77081 
T 713-622-9264   F 713-622-9265 
Texas Registered Engineering Firm F-754 
 

 

February 16, 2024 

 

 

Mayor and City Council  

City of Hilshire Village 

8301 Westview Drive 

Houston, Texas 77055 

 

Re: Engineer's Report for February 20, 2024 Council Meeting 

 HDR Job No. 10361759 

 

Dear Mayor and Council Members: 

 

HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR) is pleased to submit this report on engineering related issues 

from January 12, 2024 to February 16, 2024.

 

1. On-Going Services (10361759): 

 

a. 1201 Archley Drive – 

 

➢ On February 7, 2024, HDR reviewed and returned comments for the As Built 

Drainage Plan Resubmittal for 1201 Archley Drive. All previous 

comments/corrections were addressed by the engineer on February 1, 2024 and 

the drainage plan was approved with exceptions noted. 

 

➢ On February 8, 2024, HDR attended the pre-construction meeting for 1201 

Archley Drive. The Contractor was made aware of the pertinent construction 

items for drainage as noted in the City Code of Ordinances. 

 

b. 8206 Burkhart Road – 

 

➢ On February 15, 2024, HDR received a parking pad plan for 8206 Burkhart 

Road. The parking pad plan is currently being reviewed for comments. 

 

c. 1311 Friarcreek Lane – 

 

➢ On February 15, 2024, HDR provided a cover inspection for 1311 Friarcreek 

Lane. The inspection is currently being coordinated for approval. 

 

d. 1222 Glourie Drive – 

 

➢ On January 18, 2024, HDR provided a pre-construction inspection for 1222 

Glourie Drive. The inspection passed with exceptions noted. 

 

 

16Item 3.C.



  
 

 

 

Page 2 of 4 
 

e. 1226 Glourie Drive – 

 

➢ On February 12, 2024, HDR received a right of way permit for 1226 Glourie 

Drive. The right of way permit is currently being reviewed for comments. 

 

f. 1306 Glourie Drive – 

 

➢ On February 13, 2024, HDR reviewed and returned comments for a right of 

way permit for 1306 Glourie Drive. The right of way permit was approved with 

exceptions noted. 

 

g. 1118 Guinea Drive – 

 

➢ On February 16, 2024, HDR reviewed and returned comments for the Drainage 

Plan for 1118 Guinea Drive. The drainage plan shall be revised and resubmitted 

to address all comments. 

 

h. 1241 Ridgeley Drive – 

 

➢ On January 30, 2024, HDR provided a cover inspection for 1241 Ridgeley 

Drive. The inspection passed with exceptions noted. 

 

i. 14 Pine Creek Lane – 

 

➢ On January 30, 2024, HDR provided a cover inspection for 14 Pine Creek Lane. 

The inspection is currently being coordinated for approval. 

 

j. 1310 Ridgeley Drive – 

 

➢ On September 13, 2023, HDR received the remaining information for the As 

Built Erosion Control Plan submittal for 1310 Ridgeley Drive. The plan 

submittal is currently being completed for review. 

 

➢ On February 15, 2024, HDR provided an as built inspection for 1310 Ridgeley 

Drive. The inspection passed with exceptions noted. 

 

k. 1131 Wirt Road – 

 

➢ On November 27, 2023, HDR received a Pool Drainage Plan Resubmittal for 

1201 Archley Drive. The drainage plan is currently being reviewed for 

comments and awaiting additional information from the Contractor. 

 

➢ On December 8, 2023, HDR provided a Pool As-Built Inspection for 1131 Wirt 

Road. The inspection has passed with exceptions noted. 

 

 

 

 

17Item 3.C.



  
 

 

 

Page 3 of 4 
 

 

l. Hilshire Green Paving, Drainage & Utility Improvements – 

 

➢ The Geotechnical field work for the project has been completed and lab work is 

currently being performed for the field findings. The Survey for the project is 

anticipated to be completed by end of next week. 

 

m. Pine Chase Grove Water Meters – 

 

➢ City of Houston Public Works provided a site visit to review the potential 

relocation of the above ground meter transmitters and provided a report on 

January 22, 2024, to provide their findings of making the relocation. In 

coordination with City of Houston Project Manager, it was requested that the 

City of Hilshire Village verify the location of existing utilities to verify there 

will be no conflicts to allow for continuous placement of wiring. Pending 

verification, the City would confirm materials and has requested that the City of 

Hilshire Village provide excavation for the City of Houston Contractor to place 

the conduit and wiring for the rerouted meter transmitters. 

 

n. Street Pavement Point Repairs 

 

➢ HDR coordinated with three (3) general contractors to review the areas in the 

City requiring pavement point repairs and to provide quotation of the 

construction cost. The Contractors have provided quotes for review; however, 

HDR is currently reviewing the quotes for comments to have the Contractors 

revise to cover all aspects of the associated work. It is anticipated that the final 

quotes and recommendation be provided in the March 2024 City Council 

Meeting for review and approval. 

 

➢ HDR coordinated with CenterPoint Energy’s construction team to review the 

two (2) existing point repair areas along Ridgley Drive (Ridgeley Drive and 

Archley north intersection and area near 1210 Ridgely Drive). The Contractor 

was able to complete the repairs of these locations on February 8, 2024. 

 

o. Wirt Road Safety Project/ Interlocal Agreements – 

 

➢ HDR has been coordinating with Mr. Patrick Nguyen (COH TDO), Mr. Shapoor 

Golshan (COH TDO), Mr. Embry Woods (COH TDO) and Mr. Jose Laguna 

(COH Interagency Coordinator) regarding the review of preliminary sidewalk 

plans previously submitted by HDR, including previous Traffic Impact 

Assessment (TIA) and traffic impact studies for the project area. 

 

➢ HDR has been coordinating to set a meeting with the COH Interagency Group 

to review and address comments from the COH and finalize the plans. 

 

➢ Mr. Laguna is following up with the COH Real Estate Group regarding the final 

disposition on the right-of-way issue across the School of the Woods. 

 

18Item 3.C.



  
 

 

 

Page 4 of 4 
 

If there are any questions concerning the information contained in this report, we will be glad 

to discuss them with you. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 

 

 

 

Javier Vasquez, P.E., CFM 

City Engineer for City of Hilshire Village 

 

cc: Files (10361759) 

19Item 3.C.



Call/Incident Type/Detail Jan Total YTD Month # of Incidents Avg Resp Time
TOTAL 250 250 Jan 174 4:19

Allergic Reaction 2 2 Feb
Automatic Aid 3 3 Mar
Automatic Aid- Apartment Fire 13 13 Apr
Automatic Aid- Building Fire 4 4 May
Automatic Aid- Elevator Rescue 3 3 Jun
Automatic Aid- Entrapment MVC 1 1 Jul
Automatic Aid- Gas Leak 1 1 Aug
Carbon Monoxide Detector No Symptoms 2 2 Sep
Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest 1 1 Oct
Check a Noxious Odor 2 2 Nov
Check for the Smell of Natural Gas 2 2 Dec
Check for the Smell of Smoke 2 2 174 4:19
Chest Pain 3 3
Choking 1 1
Diabetic Emergency 1 1
Difficulty Breathing 9 9
Elevator Rescue 1 1
Fall Victim 10 10
Fire Alarm Business 8 8
Fire Alarm Church or School 10 10
Fire Alarm Residence 36 36
Gas Leak 3 3
Heart Problems 8 8
Heat/Cold Exposure 1 1
Hemorrhage/Laceration 1 1
House Fire 2 2
Injured Party 4 4
Medical Alarm 6 6
Motor Vehicle Collision 23 23
Object Down in Roadway 6 6
Oven/Appliance Fire 1 1
Overdose/Poisoning 1 1
Possible D.O.S. 1 1
Powerlines Down Arcing/Burning 3 3
Pregnancy/ Childbirth 1 1
Psychiatric Emergency 3 3
Seizures 4 4
Service Call Non-emergency 14 14
Shooting/Stabbing 1 1
Sick Call 21 21
Smoke in Business 1 1
Smoke in Residence 1 1
Stroke 5 5
Transformer Fire 3 3
Traumatic Injury 1 1
Unconscious Party/Syncope 14 14
Unknown Medical Emergency 1 1
Vehicle Fire 4 4
Wash Down 1 1

Village Fire Department
901 Corbindale Rd
Houston,TX,77024
Phone# (713) 468-7941 Fax# (713) 468-5039

January 2024 Summary - All Cities

20Item 3.D.



Call/Incident Type/Detail Jan Total YTD Month # of Incidents Avg Resp Time
TOTAL 26 26 Jan 17 5:15

Check for Noxious Odor 1 1 Feb
Check for the Smell of Natural Gas 2 2 Mar
Fire Alarm Church or School 3 3 Apr
Fire Alarm Residence 7 7 May
Heart Problems 1 1 Jun
Injured Party 1 1 Jul
Motor Vehicle Collision 2 2 Aug
Object Down in Roadway 1 1 Sep
Seizures 1 1 Oct
Service Call Non-emergency 2 2 Nov
Sick Call 2 2 Dec
Smoke in Residence 1 1 17 5:15
Unconscious Party/Syncope 1 1
Vehicle Fire 1 1

Village Fire Department
901 Corbindale Rd
Houston,TX,77024
Phone# (713) 468-7941 Fax# (713) 468-5039

January 2024 Summary - Bunker Hill

21Item 3.D.



Call/Incident Type/Detail Jan Total YTD Month # of Incidents Avg Resp Time
TOTAL 47 47 Jan 45 2:58

Allergic Reaction 1 1 Feb
Check for the Smell of Smoke 1 1 Mar
Chest Pain 2 2 Apr
Difficulty Breathing 3 3 May
Elevator Rescue 1 1 Jun
Fall Victim 2 2 Jul
Fire Alarm Business 4 4 Aug
Fire Alarm Church or School 1 1 Sep
Fire Alarm Residence 1 1 Oct
Heart Problems 2 2 Nov
Heat/Cold Exposure 1 1 Dec
Injured Party 2 2 45 2:58
Medical Alarm 1 1
Motor Vehicle Collision 7 7
Oven/Appliance Fire 1 1
Powerlines Down Arcing/Burning 1 1
Psychiatric Emergency 2 2
Shooting/Stabbing 1 1
Sick Call 4 4
Smoke in Business 1 1
Unconscious Party/Syncope 6 6
Vehicle Fire 1 1
Wash Down 1 1

Village Fire Department
901 Corbindale Rd
Houston,TX,77024
Phone# (713) 468-7941 Fax# (713) 468-5039

January 2024 Summary - Hedwig

22Item 3.D.



Call/Incident Type/Detail Jan Total YTD Month # of Incidents Avg Resp Time
TOTAL 4 4 Jan 3 4:34

Difficulty Breathing 1 1 Feb
Fall Victim 1 1 Mar
Fire Alarm Business 1 1 Apr
Stroke 1 1 May

Jun
Jul
Aug
Sep
Oct
Nov
Dec

3 4:34

Village Fire Department
901 Corbindale Rd
Houston,TX,77024
Phone# (713) 468-7941 Fax# (713) 468-5039

January 2024 Summary - Hilshire

23Item 3.D.



Call/Incident Type/Detail Jan Total YTD Month # of Incidents Avg Resp Time
TOTAL 52 52 Jan 40 5:03

Check a Noxious Odor 1 1 Feb
Check for the Smell of Smoke 1 1 Mar
Chest Pain 1 1 Apr
Choking 1 1 May
Diabetic Emergency 1 1 Jun
Fall Victim 5 5 Jul
Fire Alarm Business 2 2 Aug
Fire Alarm Residence 13 13 Sep
Heart Problems 1 1 Oct
Injured Party 1 1 Nov
Medical Alarm 3 3 Dec
Motor Vehicle Collision 3 3 40 5:03
Object Down in Roadway 1 1
Overdose/Poisoning 1 1
Seizures 1 1
Service Call Non-emergency 5 5
Sick Call 5 5
Stroke 1 1
Transformer Fire 1 1
Unconscious Party/Syncope 4 4

Village Fire Department
901 Corbindale Rd
Houston,TX,77024
Phone# (713) 468-7941 Fax# (713) 468-5039

January 2024 Summary - Hunters Creek

24Item 3.D.



Call/Incident Type/Detail Jan Total YTD Month # of Incidents Avg Resp Time
TOTAL 44 44 Jan 23 4:59

Difficulty Breathing 2 2 Feb
Fall Victim 1 1 Mar
Fire Alarm Church or School 5 5 Apr
Fire Alarm Residence 13 13 May
Gas Leak 3 3 Jun
Hemorrhage/Laceration 1 1 Jul
Medical Alarm 2 2 Aug
Motor Vehicle Collision 1 1 Sep
Object Down in Roadway 3 3 Oct
Possible D.O.S. 1 1 Nov
Powerlines Down Arcing/Burning 2 2 Dec
Service Call Non-emergency 4 4 23 4:59
Sick Call 2 2
Stroke 2 2
Transformer Fire 1 1
Traumatic Injury 1 1

Village Fire Department
901 Corbindale Rd
Houston,TX,77024
Phone# (713) 468-7941 Fax# (713) 468-5039

January 2024 Summary - Piney Point

25Item 3.D.



Call/Incident Type/Detail Jan Total YTD Month # of Incidents Avg Resp Time
TOTAL 49 49 Jan 46 4:17

Allergic Reaction 1 1 Feb
Carbon Monoxide Detector No Symptoms 2 2 Mar
Cardiac/Respiratory Arrest 1 1 Apr
Difficulty Breathing 3 3 May
Fall Victim 1 1 Jun
Fire Alarm Business 1 1 Jul
Fire Alarm Residence 2 2 Aug
Heart Problems 4 4 Sep
House Fire 2 2 Oct
Motor Vehicle Collision 10 10 Nov
Object Down in Roadway 1 1 Dec
Pregnancy/ Childbirth 1 1 46 4:17
Psychiatric Emergency 1 1
Seizures 2 2
Service Call Non-emergency 1 1
Sick Call 8 8
Transformer Fire 1 1
Stroke 1 1
Unconscious Party/Syncope 3 3
Unknown Medical Emergency 1 1
Vehicle Fire 2 2

Village Fire Department
901 Corbindale Rd
Houston,TX,77024
Phone# (713) 468-7941 Fax# (713) 468-5039

January 2024 Summary - Spring Valley

26Item 3.D.



27Item 3.D.



28Item 3.D.



29Item 3.D.



30Item 3.D.



31Item 3.D.



32Item 3.D.



33Item 3.D.



34Item 3.D.



35Item 3.D.



36Item 3.D.



37Item 3.D.



38Item 3.D.



39Item 3.D.



40Item 3.D.



41Item 3.D.



42Item 3.D.



City of Hilshire Village
Complaint Log

Date 
Notified Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results Date 

Resolved

8/4/23 Archley/Ridgeley CenterPoint patch not 
fixed 

Archley/Ridgeley 
Intersection

Contact Javier Vasquez to follow-up with 
CenterPoint Rep. CenterPoint repaved both patches 2/1/2024

9/7/23

His truck was stolen from his driveway. 
Although his doorbell camera caught some 
footage, the license plate of the 
accompanying vehicle was not able to be 
seen. Requesting a Flock LPR on Hilshire 
Green. 

7906 Hilshire Green
Talking with council about additional cameras 
in next year's budget. Investigating possible 
grants. 

9/26/23 Electricity outage 1249 Archley Dr Contacted CenterPoint to conduct a street 
assessment 

Waiting on updates from CenterPoint 
reliability group. The contact is out of 
office until 10/18

1/8/24 Repairs were made to the lines 
for this area, will wait to see if 
conditions improve. 

1/8/2024

9/26/23 Electricity outage 1221 Archley Dr Contacted CenterPoint to conduct a street 
assessment 

Waiting on updates from CenterPoint 
reliability group. The contact is out of 
office until 10/18

1/8/24 Repairs were made to the lines 
for this area, will wait to see if 
conditions improve. 

1/8/2024

12/27/23

Multiple neighbors are having construction 
work done and contractors are parking in 
front of their mailbox, wanted to know if 
anything can be done about it. 

Hilshire Oaks

Researched laws against parking in front of a 
mailbox, found none. Advised caller to 
continue to reach out to their neighbors to 
have contractors park in driveways. Also 
advised to call if there is a specific person 
constantly parking there. 

No further action taken. 12/27/2023

12/27/23 Appears that construction is happening on 
the inside, inquired about a permit. 1209 Archley Dr Contacted Safebuilt to conduct a jobsite 

maintenace inspection

Resident is making repairs to pool 
(that do not require a permit) no signs 
of additional construction

1/3/2024

12/28/23
Water line break causing flooding next to 
their driveway, cannot figure out where it is 
coming from. 

7918 Hilshire Green Sent Inframark technician to investigate. 
No dectectable leak on City-Side. Tag 
left for resident, potential irrigation 
leak. No further action required.

12/28/2023

12/28/23
Aksed if we could send a city-wide email 
informing citizens that they could drop off 
their christmas trees for recycling. 

1134 Glourie Drive Created email with contact information. No further action taken. 12/18/2023

12/28/23 Garbage had not been collected, was 
worried he was skipped. 1317 Ridgeley Drive Sent notice to GFL to return for collection. Garbage was collected. 12/28/2023

Council Meeting February 20, 2024 1 of 3 43Item 3.F.



City of Hilshire Village
Complaint Log

Date 
Notified Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results Date 

Resolved

1/3/24 Communication cable down across the 
road, hazardous to pedestrians 14 Pine Creek Contacted AT&T

1/5 AT&T responded that this is not 
theirs but Comcast's. Called Comcast, 
work order ticket ref # 
ECM0005543879. Was advised it 
should be resolved within 1 week. 
Line was cut 

2/1/2024

1/5/24 Garbage was not collected 20 Hickory Shadows Contacted GFL No further action required 1/6/2024

1/8/24 Power outage, asking for help to escalate 
repairs 8206 Mallie Ct

CenterPoint advised that the wires need to be 
replaced, they were swaying in the wind and 
sparking. 

Repairs were made 1/8/2024

1/9/24

Construction site to the rear of his property 
has a metal door that is blowing with the 
wind and banging against something very 
loudly. 

1222 Glourie Drive Door not visible. Contacted contractor to have 
dumpster debris removed No further action required 1/10/2024

1/10/24 leak at meter 1218 Glourie Drive Meter leaking, contacted Inframark to turn off 
water and assess the situation No further action required 1/10/2024

1/12/24 Tree fallen at Birdlespur easement 8157 Westview Contacted 311 to remove tree case # 
12591688-2400016362 

Tree was removed by Harris County 
Flood Control, No further action 
required 

2/1/2024

1/16/24 Hickory Shadows interconnect leaking Hickory Shadows Called Inframark to repair

Inframark found a valve frozen open. 
The water is coming out of the 
dedicating screen at the bottom, 
closed both wheeled valves to stop 
the water flow.

1/17/2024

1/16/24
Water was off when she returned home, 
asked if a technician found a leak and 
turned it off at the meter. 

1327 Glourie Sent Inframark technician to the house. 

No turn off order was created, helped 
the owner find the house shut off 
which was frozen. Found a leak on 
the irrigation system, turned 
secondary meter off for repairs. 

1/16/2024

1/17/24
Ditch was not protected, driveway and 
culvert have been removed as part of 
construction

1306 Glourie Dr City Engineer inspected culverts and driveway 
gave notes on how to remidate the issue GC compliant 1/18/2024

1/17/24
Pile of small tree limbs are at the end of 
the driveway, not bundled properly for 
collection

Glourie Drive, between 
8001 Bromley and 8002 
Anadell

Contacted contractor, debris was removed No further action required 1/18/2024

1/17/24 Political sign in ROW 1220 Archley Dr Called resident to move sign Signed was moved out of the ROW 1/17/2024

1/17/24

Offcuts from plywood and a pallet are in 
the ditch for driving equipment into the 
construction site. This is not up to standard 
and the items cannot be left in the ditch. 

8002 Burkhart Rd
Contact GC, only whole sheets of plywood 
can be placed in the ditch and must be 
removed when not in use

GC compliant 1/18/2024

Council Meeting February 20, 2024 2 of 3 44Item 3.F.



City of Hilshire Village
Complaint Log

Date 
Notified Complaint/Issue Address of Concern Action Results Date 

Resolved

1/25/24 People driving fast on Glourie and a lack of 
speed signs throughout the city 1122 Glourie Informed SVPD No further action required 1/25/2024

1/30/24
Median on Wirt Road turning into Ridgeley 
is broken and rebar is sticking out. 
Hazardous to drivers.

Wirt median @ Ridgeley Submitted service request to Houston 311. 
Tracking # 12597005-2400048024

2/5 Houston closed out the ticket 
without action, stating that there was 
no hazard found. 2/13 Re-submitted 
the email with new photos showing 
hazard remains. 

2/1/24 Neighbor is not picking up after their dog. 
Also, their trash can is visible every day. 9 Pine Creek Lane Spoke with the owner No further action required 2/1/2024

2/2/24 Construction material and debris in front 
yard of new construction 1306 Glourie Dr

Contacted contractor to reinstall perimeter 
fencing or pickup and store debris in a 
nonvisible area.

Contractor cleaned up and stacked 
materials. The driveway is being 
poured but there is no sod in yet. 

2/3/2024

2/5/24 Follow-up call RE: construction fencing and 
materials 1306 Glourie Dr

Lisa drove by to look at the site. Contacted 
BBG to confirm if security fencing is needed 
or if the remaining silt fencing is enough. 

Inspector said that the contractor is at 
the building stage where fencing 
comes down. However, he would 
contact the GC about the pile of 
debris in the front yard. No further 
action required.

2/8/2024

2/8/24 Water is coming out of the shared meter 
box in his neighbor's yard. 

1303 Friarcreek & 1307 
Friarcreek Sent Inframark technician to investigate. 

Technician reported that the leak is on 
the domestic side for 1303 Friarcreek. 
He was able to speak with the 
homeowner who asked to leave the 
water on, she was getting a plumber 
out to make repairs. 

2/8/2024

2/12/24 A lot of dog feces in the grass, when 
mowed it sprays. Pine Creek Lane grass area Preparing a city-wide email reminding of the 

ordinance

2/13 Sent email with reminders to the 
general interest group in constant 
contact. 

2/13/2024

2/12/24 Lawn companies are working on Sundays 
against the ordinance. City-wide Preparing a city-wide email reminding of the 

ordinance

2/13 Sent email with reminders to the 
general interest group in constant 
contact. 

2/13/2024

2/12/24 Political, event and contractor signs in 
ROW City-wide

Removed (2) signs for an event and 
advertising a moving company. Preparing a 
city-wide email reminding of the ordinance

2/13 Sent email with reminders to the 
general interest group in constant 
contact. 

2/13/2024

2/15/24 Garbage was not collected, but recylcing 
was. 1100 Ridgeley Dr Contacted GFL to return. 2/16 Followed up with GFL on 

collection, waiting for update. 

2/16/24 Construction site is not kept clean, mud 
tracked on the street. 1236 Archley Dr Contacted the contractor to make sure the 

site and roadway are clean each day. 

Contractor said he is ordering a 
different type of rock for the on-site 
parking pad. He is also cleaning the 
street. 

Council Meeting February 20, 2024 3 of 3 45Item 3.F.



 

 P a g e  | 1 

 

Regular Council Meeting 
Agenda Minutes 

 
Tuesday, January 23, 2024 at 6:30 PM 
8301 Westview Drive, Houston, Texas 77055 

 
1. Mayor Pro Tem Carey called to order the Regular Council Meeting January 23, 2024, at 

6:29 PM 
 
1.A. Mayor Pro Tem Carey gave the Invocation  
 
1.B. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
1.C. Present: 

Mayor Buesinger* 
Council Member Gordy 
Mayor Pro Tem Carey 
Council Member Huber 
 
*Present remotely 
 
Absent: Council Member Crawford, Council Member Cooper 

   
Also Present Were: City Attorney Thomas Ramsey, Olson & Olson, City Engineer 
Him, HDR Engineering, Spring Valley Police Captain Lane and Sergeant 
Menchaca, and City Secretary Stephens 
 

2.  CITIZEN’S COMMENTS: None  
 
3. REPORTS TO COUNCIL 

 
3.D. Fire Commissioner's Report  

Interim Chief Miller has announced that Captain Swinner has returned to duty after 
recovering from an injury that had sidelined him last year. Captain Young has 
resigned from the department. Ladder 1 was involved in an accident with a van, 
resulting in a ruptured tire. A report on the incident has been filed. 

 
The surplus ambulance has been sold, and the Fire Department has acquired a 
hand-me-down drone from the Memorial Villages Police Department. Croft and 
Johnson are currently undergoing training to obtain licenses for drone operation. 

 
Major incidents in the area include a building fire in Houston and a house fire in 
Spring Valley. In December, Hilshire Village experienced three fire incidents and 
five EMS incidents, with an average response time of 5:43 minutes. 

 

46Item 4.B.



 

 P a g e  | 2 

Projects at the fire station include the completion of the annex roof with touch-up 
work. Details are still being worked out for the main roof, and the previous 
contractor has offered reimbursement, allowing the department to hire someone 
else for the job as a change order.  
 
A finance consultant began work on February 17th. Hydrant testing is going to start 
up again and will be completed in May. Tomorrow night, there will be a fire 
commission meeting.  
 

3.A. Police Report 
Sergeant Menchaca provided a report indicating that in December, there were 872 
calls, 750 business checks, 34 public relations engagements, and 14 traffic stops. 
On December 6th, a package theft occurred, but unfortunately, the video from the 
doorbell camera could not be obtained. Flock license plate reader cameras 
recorded 37,811 license plate reads in December. 

 
Sergeant Menchaca mentioned that the on-board dash cams now include License 
Plate Readers (LPRs) that automatically record while driving. In the event of a hit, 
dispatch will be notified, and officers will receive notification on their cell phones. 

 
The council did not raise any questions regarding the 2023 Racial Profiling Letter & 
Report. 
 

3.B. Building Official Report 
City Secretary Stephens reported that there were no pending matters to discuss. 

 
3.C. Engineer Report 

Engineer Him provided an update on plans currently under review.  
 

Hilshire Green Paving, Drainage & Utility Engineer Him said that the scheduled 
survey is pending weather improvements and is expected to be ready in February. 
 
Pine Chase Grove Water Meters Engineer Him reported that a meeting with City 
of Houston representatives had taken place, during which several topics were 
discussed. The City of Houston agreed to install bolts to secure the meter vault 
hatches. Hilshire Village has been granted permission to paint the hatches, and 
there are no objections to landscaping around the meter vaults. Re-grading the area 
is planned, and there is a request from the City of Houston to fence off the meter 
vaults during construction for protection from any heavy equipment. The relocation 
of control panels is possible, pending confirmation of any utilities in the way to run 
conduits. Calibration of the meters is supposed to occur annually by the City of 
Houston. Council Member Gordy advised to check when the last calibration was 
done. 
 
Pavement Point Repairs Engineer Him said that CenterPoint representatives met 
with Engineer Vasquez to review the two areas of concern on Ridgeley Drive. 
CenterPoint agreed to schedule repairs to these areas.  
 
Wirt Rd Sidewalk Engineer Him said that they are attempting to arrange a meeting 

47Item 4.B.



 

 P a g e  | 3 

to discuss the comments from the City of Houston on the sidewalk design. These 
comments include keeping the sidewalk as straight as possible, exploring repairs to 
damaged curbs, and the City of Houston standard sidewalk width of six feet. 
Council Member Gordy is interested in updating the Harris County Commissioner 
with the project status, as well as discussing curb repairs with them. Engineer Him 
reminded the council that the ROW in front of the Hickory Shadows Park is owned 
by TxDOT and their approval is required if the sidewalk is to extend to the I-10 
feeder road. Council Member Gordy highlighted the School of the Woods ROW as 
another consideration. He asked if there is a way to progress with the project while 
working on these conditions rather than postponing it further.  
 
There was a leakage issue with the backflow preventer at Hickory Shadows, despite 
being adequately insulated. Quotes have been requested for both repairing and 
replacing the preventer, and these will be presented to the council for consideration. 
 

3.E. Mayor Buesinger's Report 
Mayor Buesinger said that the fire department concluded the year with expenditures 
below the budget. 

 
3.F. City Secretary's Report 

Secretary Stephens presented the Hilshire Village Annual Calendar highlighting the 
contract renewal periods with the local newspaper, the schedule for annual budget 
approval and audit, and various other community events and holidays.  

 
3.G. City Treasurer's Report 

Secretary Stephens stated that the quarterly financial reports for the fourth quarter 
of fiscal year 2023 and the first quarter of fiscal year 2024 are included in the 
consent agenda. 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA  

Motion made by Council Member Huber, Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Carey. 
 
4.A. Approve Disbursements 
4.B. Approve Minutes from the Regular Council Meeting December 19, 2023 
4.C. Approve Check Registers and Financials 
4.D. Approve Quarterly Investment Report 4th Quarter FYE 2023  
4.E. Approve Quarterly Investment Report 1st Quarter FYE 2024  

 
Voting Yea: Council Member Gordy, Mayor Pro Tem Carey, Council Member Huber 
 
The motion carried 3 to 0.  

 
5. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

 
5.A. Discussion and possible approval of the City of Hilshire Village Ordinance 

835-2024 for Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Budget Amendment #1.  
 

Motion made by Council Member Huber, Seconded by Council Member Gordy. 
 

48Item 4.B.



 

 P a g e  | 4 

Secretary Stephens conveyed that there is no requirement for additional funds; 
instead, this involves a reallocation between funds within the same accounts. 
 
Voting Yea: Council Member Gordy, Mayor Pro Tem Carey, Council Member Huber 

 
The motion carried 3 to 0.  

 
5.B. Discussion and possible action to purchase an extended manufacturer's 

warranty for the newly acquired generator at City Hall. 

 
Motion made by Council Member Huber, Seconded by Council Member Gordy. 
 
Council Member Gordy recommended the 10-year warranty superior coverage for 
only a slightly higher cost compared to the 7-year option.  
 
Council Member Huber amended his motion to purchase the 10-year extended 
manufacturer’s warranty as presented for the newly acquired generator at City Hall.  
 
Voting Yea to the amended motion: Council Member Gordy, Mayor Pro Tem Carey, 
Council Member Huber 

 
The motion carried 3 to 0.  
 

5.C. Discussion and possible action to increase or reposition street lights.  
  

Motion made by Council Member Gordy, Seconded by Council Member Huber. 
 
The council discussed implementing the following strategy: 

1. Engage with CenterPoint and HDR Engineering to collect information and 
conduct a survey to assess:  

a) locations with existing poles, noting the side of the street where the pole is 
situated.  

b) areas without poles, obtaining specifications and cost estimates from 
CenterPoint. 

2. Reach out to residents living near these locations to gather their feedback. 
Highlight the importance of targeted lighting to meet specific needs without 
causing excessive illumination. 

3. Inquire with CenterPoint about the current cobra lights' ability to provide full 
coverage and whether they can be adjusted. 

 
No vote was taken.  

 
5.D. Discussion and possible action regarding public participation in council 

meetings by video calls. 
 
Motion made by Council Member Gordy, Seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Carey. 
 

49Item 4.B.



 

 P a g e  | 5 

Secretary Stephens explained that while such incidents have not occurred during our 
in-person meetings, there have been instances in other cities of individuals disrupting 
video meetings and displaying graphic content. This discussion aims to determine 
whether the council wishes to restrict the visibility and audibility of individuals 
attending via videoconference. 
 
The council decided to postpone the discussion on this matter until a full council can 
be convened.  
 
No vote was taken.  

 
6. DISCUSSION 
 
7. ADDITIONAL COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mayor Pro Tem Carey asked for the batteries to be checked in the speed detector on 
Ridgeley Drive. 

 
8. FUTURE AGENDA TOPICS 

Ordinance for Ridgeley Drive No Parking Zone 
 
9. ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT  

Motion made by Council Member Gordy, Seconded by Council Member Huber.  
 
Voting Yea: Council Member Gordy, Mayor Pro Tem Carey, Council Member Huber 
 
The motion carried 3 to 0.  

 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:41 PM.  

 

___________________________ 

ATTEST:              Andy Carey, Mayor Pro Tem 

 

___________________________ 

Cassie Stephens, City Secretary 
 
 

50Item 4.B.



RESOLUTION NO. 2024-255 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF HILSHIRE 

VILLAGE, TEXAS DESIGNATING AN INVESTMENT OFFICER 

WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act codified in Government Code Chapter 2256 

governs local government investment; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Fund Investment Act (Section 2256.005(f)) and the City's 

Investment Policy, require the City to designate one or more investment officer(s) by rule, order, 

ordinance or resolution; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Public Funds Investment Act and the City's Investment Policy require the 

investment officer to perform certain duties and report regularly to the City Council on the 

investment program, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HILSHIRE VILLAGE, TEXAS: 

 

That the City has complied with the requirements of the Public Funds Investment Act and 

the City's Investment Policy and designates the City Secretary to serve as Investment 

Officer of the City.  

 

To be responsible for the investment of its funds consistent with policy, the Investment 

Officer is authorized to deposit, withdraw, transfer, open investment accounts, and manage 

the funds while exercising the judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, that 

a prudent person would exercise in the management of the person's own affairs and to 

perform all the requirements of the Act. 

 

AND, the Council recognizes that the Council retains the ultimate responsibility as 

fiduciaries of the assets of the City (Section 2256.005(f)). 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of February 2024 

 

 

 

____________________________________ 

Robert F. Buesinger, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Cassie Stephens, City Secretary 

51Item 5.A.



  

 1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-256 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, 

TEXAS FINDING THAT THE STATEMENT OF INTENT OF 

CENTERPOINT ENERGY RESOURCES CORP., D/B/A 

CENTERPOINT ENERGY ENTEX AND CENTERPOINT 

ENERGY TO CHANGE RATES FILING WITHIN THE CITY 

SHOULD BE DENIED; FINDING THAT THE CITY’S 

REASONABLE RATE CASE EXPENSES SHALL BE 

REIMBURSED BY THE COMPANY; FINDING THAT THE 

MEETING AT WHICH THIS RESOLUTION IS PASSED IS 

OPEN TO THE PUBLIC AS REQUIRED BY LAW; 

REQUIRING NOTICE OF THIS RESOLUTION TO THE 

COMPANY AND LEGAL COUNSEL. 

WHEREAS, the City of Hilshire Village, Texas (“City”) is a gas utility customer of 

CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp., d/b/a CenterPoint Energy Entex and CenterPoint Energy 

Texas Gas (“CenterPoint” or “Company”) within the unincorporated areas of the Houston, Texas 

Coast, Beaumont/East Texas, and South Texas Divisions, and a regulatory authority with an 

interest in the rates and charges of CenterPoint; and 

     

 WHEREAS, the City is a member of Cities Served by CenterPoint Gas (“Cities”) (such 

participating cities are referred to herein as “Cities”), a coalition of similarly situated cities served 

by CenterPoint that have joined together to efficiently and cost effectively review and respond to 

natural gas issues affecting rates charged in the Houston, Texas Coast, Beaumont/East Texas, and 

South Texas Divisions; and  

 

WHEREAS, on or about October 30, 2023, CenterPoint filed with the City a Statement of 

Intent to Increase Rates seeking to increase natural gas rates by $37.4 million annually and to all 

customers residing in the City; and 

 

WHEREAS, Cities is coordinating its review of CenterPoint’s Statement of Intent filing 

with designated attorneys and consultants to resolve issues in the Company’s filing; and  

 

WHEREAS, through review of the application, Cities’ consultants determined that 

CenterPoint’s proposed rates are excessive; and  

 

WHEREAS, the Cities’ members and attorneys recommend that Cities members deny the 

Statement of Intent; and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HILSHIRE VILLAGE, TEXAS: 

 

Section 1. That the rates proposed by CenterPoint to be recovered through its gas rates 

charged to customers located within the City limits, are hereby found to be unreasonable and shall 

be denied.   

52Item 5.B.



  

 2 

 

Section 2. That the Company shall continue to charge its existing rates to customers 

within the City. 

 

Section 3. That the City’s reasonable rate case expenses shall be reimbursed in full by 

CenterPoint within 30 days of the adoption of this Resolution. 

 

Section 4. That it is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which 

this Resolution is passed is open to the public as required by law and the public notice of the time, 

place, and purpose of said meeting was given as required. 

 

Section 5.   That a copy of this Resolution shall be sent to Keith L. Wall, CenterPoint 

Energy, at P.O. Box 2628, Houston, Texas 77252-2628, and to Jamie Mauldin, General Counsel 

to the Cities Served by CenterPoint Gas at Lloyd Gosselink Rochelle & Townsend, P.C., 816 

Congress Avenue, Suite 1900, Austin, Texas 78701. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED this 20th day of February, 2024. 

 

      _________________________________ 

      Mayor Robert F. Buesinger 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

City Secretary Cassie Stephens 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

___________________________________ 

City Attorney 

 

53Item 5.B.



STAFF REPORT REGARDING CENTERPOINT ENERGY’S 

STATEMENT OF INTENT FILING 

*** 

On October 30, 2023, CenterPoint Energy Resources Corp., d/b/a CenterPoint Entergy 

Entex and CenterPoint Energy Texas Gas (CenterPoint or Company) filed a Statement of Intent to 

Increase Rates application with Houston, Texas Coast, Beaumont/East Texas, and South Texas 

Divisions. In the filing, the Company asserted that it is entitled to a $37.4 million increase or a 

5.8% increase over current adjusted revenues, excluding gas costs.  

In November, the Cities Served by CenterPoint Gas (Cities) engaged the services of 

consultants to review the Company’s filing. The consultants identified numerous unreasonable 

expenses and proposed significant reductions to the Company’s request. Accordingly, Cities’ 

attorney recommends that all Cities members adopt the Resolution denying the rate change. Once 

the Resolution is adopted, CenterPoint will have 30 days to appeal the decision to the Railroad 

Commission where the appeal will be consolidated with CenterPoint’s filing for the environs and 

those cities that have relinquished their jurisdiction (i.e. Gas Utility Docket 15513) currently 

pending at the Commission. 

Under the law, cities with original jurisdiction over this matter have 125 days from the 

initial filing to take final action on the application. Since the application was filed on October 30, 

2023, all cities with original jurisdiction will need to adopt the resolution no later than March 3, 

2024.   

Purpose of the Resolution: 

 The purpose of the Resolution is to deny the rate application and consolidation proposed 

by CenterPoint.   

  

Explanation of “Be It Resolved” Paragraphs: 
 

 1. This paragraph finds that the Company’s application is unreasonable and should be 

denied. 

 

 2. This section states that the Company’s current rates shall not be changed.    

 

3. The Company will reimburse Cities for their reasonable rate case expenses.  Legal 

counsel and consultants, approved by the Cities, will submit monthly invoices that will be 

forwarded to CenterPoint for reimbursement.   

 

4.  This section merely recites that the Resolution was passed at a meeting that was open 

to the public and that the consideration of the Resolution was properly noticed. 

5.  This section provides CenterPoint and counsel for the cities will be notified of the City’s 

action by sending a copy of the approved and signed resolution to counsel.  

 

54Item 5.B.



55Item 5.D.



56Item 5.D.



57Item 5.D.



ORDINANCE NO. 836-2024 

AN ORDINANCE DESIGNATING PORTIONS OF RIDGLEY DRIVE FROM ITS 

INTERSECTION WITH MALLIE COURT SOUTH/EAST 100 FEET AS A NO PARKING 

ZONE; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $200.00 FOR 

VIOLATION OF ANY PROVISION IN THIS ORDINANCE; REPEALING ALL 

ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES INCONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT 

HEREWITH, AND PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY.  

WHEREAS, Texas Transportation Code Section 542.201 authorizes the City to enact and enforce 

rules regulating traffic that do not conflict with Texas’s Rules of the Road; and  

WHEREAS, Section 10-604(a) of the City’s Code of Ordinances provides that “a person commits 

an offense if the person stops, stands or parks a vehicle, in a curb zone: 1) for a period of time 

longer than designated; (2) at a time prohibited by designation; (3) for a purpose other than that 

which is designated; or (4) at a place prohibited by designation”; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council hereby finds and determines that it is in the best interest of the public 

that an additional portion of the area immediately adjacent to the roadway (“curb zone”) of Ridgely 

Drive from Mallie Court to 100’ South and east of Mallie Court be designated as a no parking area 

as provided by Section 10-605(a)(4) of the Code of Ordinances; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

HILSHIRE VILLAGE, TEXAS:  

Section 1.  The City Council hereby designates the curb zone on both sides of Ridgley Drive from 

its intersection with Mallie Court to 100 feet southeast of Mallie Court as a no parking area, as 

provided by Section 10-604(a)(4) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas.  

Section 2.  The city secretary is directed to revise the Traffic Schedules maintained pursuant to 

Section 10.701 of the Code of Ordinances of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, to reflect the 

amendments to the parking zones made by this Ordinance. The city secretary is further authorized 

to place signs in accordance with the provisions of this Ordinance.  

Section 3.  The city secretary is directed to provide to the city engineer, municipal court, and police 

department the revised Traffic Schedules. 

Section 4.  Any person, corporation or entity who shall violate any provision of this Ordinance 

shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to 

exceed $200.00. Each day in which any violation shall occur, or each occurrence of any violation, 

shall constitute a separate offense.  

Section 5.  All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent or in conflict herewith are, to the 

extent of such inconsistency or conflict, hereby repealed.  

Section 6.  In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, or part of this Ordinance or the 

application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or 

held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate 

58Item 5.D.



this Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid 

or unconstitutional; and the City Council of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, declares that it 

would have passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part 

thus declared to be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts.  

Section 7.  This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption and publication of this 

ordinance or a caption that summarizes the purpose of this ordinance and the penalty for violating 

this ordinance in every issue of the official newspaper for two days, or one issue of the newspaper 

if the official newspaper is a weekly paper, in accordance with Section 52.011 of the Texas Local 

Government Code.  

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 20th day of February, 2024.  

 

 

_________________________  

Robert Buesinger, Mayor  

 

ATTEST: _________________________ 

Cassie Stephens, City Secretary 

59Item 5.D.



LGC Title 11, Subtitle C, Chapter 370, Section 370.007 
Page 1 of 1 

 

Web Link 

      

LOCAL GOVERNMENT CODE 

 

TITLE 11. PUBLIC SAFETY 

 

SUBTITLE C. PUBLIC SAFETY PROVISIONS APPLYING TO MORE THAN ONE 

TYPE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

 

CHAPTER 370.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS RELATING TO HEALTH AND 

PUBLIC SAFETY OF MORE THAN ONE TYPE OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

 

 

Sec. 370.007.  JUVENILE CURFEWS PROHIBITED.   

(a)  Notwithstanding any other law, a political subdivision 

may not adopt or enforce an order, ordinance, or other measure 

that imposes a curfew to regulate the movements or actions of 

persons younger than 18 years of age. 

(b)  This section does not apply to a curfew implemented 

under Chapter 418, Government Code, for purposes of emergency 

management. 

 

Added by Acts 2023, 88th Leg., R.S., Ch. 425 (H.B. 1819), Sec. 

6, eff. September 1, 2023. 

60Item 5.E.

https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.370.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/GetStatute.aspx?Code=GV&Value=418
http://www.legis.state.tx.us/tlodocs/88R/billtext/html/HB01819F.HTM


61Item 5.E.



62Item 5.E.



63Item 5.E.



64Item 5.E.



65Item 5.E.



66Item 5.E.



 88R8009 CJD-D
 
 By: Cook H.B. No. 1819
 
 
 A BILL TO BE ENTITLED
 AN ACT
 relating to the repeal of the authority of political subdivisions
 to adopt or enforce juvenile curfews.
        BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF TEXAS:
        SECTION 1.  Article 45.045(c), Code of Criminal Procedure,
 is amended to read as follows:
        (c)  This article does not limit the authority of a court to
 order a child taken into custody under Article 45.058 [or 45.059].
        SECTION 2.  Article 45.060(a), Code of Criminal Procedure,
 is amended to read as follows:
        (a)  Except as provided by Article [Articles] 45.058 [and
 45.059], an individual may not be taken into secured custody for
 offenses alleged to have occurred before the individual's 17th
 birthday.
        SECTION 3.  Section 51.02(15), Family Code, is amended to
 read as follows:
              (15)  "Status offender" means a child who is accused,
 adjudicated, or convicted for conduct that would not, under state
 law, be a crime if committed by an adult, including:
                    (A)  running away from home under Section
 51.03(b)(2);
                    (B)  a fineable only offense under Section
 51.03(b)(1) transferred to the juvenile court under Section
 51.08(b), but only if the conduct constituting the offense would
 not have been criminal if engaged in by an adult;
                    (C)  a violation of standards of student conduct
 as described by Section 51.03(b)(4);
                    (D)  [a violation of a juvenile curfew ordinance
 or order;
                    [(E)]  a violation of a provision of the Alcoholic
 Beverage Code applicable to minors only; or
                    (E) [(F)]  a violation of any other fineable only
 offense under Section 8.07(a)(4) or (5), Penal Code, but only if the
 conduct constituting the offense would not have been criminal if
 engaged in by an adult.
        SECTION 4.  Section 38.003(a), Government Code, is amended
 to read as follows:
        (a)  The judge of a county, justice, or municipal court, in
 accordance with Section 38.002, may award money from a judicial
 donation trust fund established under Section 38.001 to eligible
 children or families who appear before the court for a truancy [or
 curfew] violation or in another misdemeanor offense proceeding
 before the court.
        SECTION 5.  Section 71.0352, Government Code, is amended to
 read as follows:
        Sec. 71.0352.  JUVENILE DATA: JUSTICE, MUNICIPAL, AND
 TRUANCY COURTS. As a component of the official monthly report
 submitted to the Office of Court Administration of the Texas
 Judicial System:
              (1)  a justice court, municipal court, or truancy court
 shall report the number of cases filed for:
                    (A)  truant conduct under Section 65.003(a),
 Family Code; and
                    (B)  the offense of parent contributing to
 nonattendance under Section 25.093, Education Code; and
                    [(C) a violation of a local daytime curfew
 ordinance adopted under Section 341.905 or 351.903, Local
 Government Code; and]

67Item 5.E.



              (2)  in cases in which a child fails to obey an order of
 a justice court, municipal court, or truancy court under
 circumstances that would constitute contempt of court, the justice
 court, municipal court, or truancy court shall report the number of
 incidents in which the child is:
                    (A)  referred to the appropriate juvenile court
 for delinquent conduct as provided by Article 45.050(c)(1), Code of
 Criminal Procedure, or Section 65.251, Family Code; or
                    (B)  held in contempt, fined, or denied driving
 privileges as provided by Article 45.050(c)(2), Code of Criminal
 Procedure, or Section 65.251, Family Code.
        SECTION 6.  Chapter 370, Local Government Code, is amended
 by adding Section 370.007 to read as follows:
        Sec. 370.007.  JUVENILE CURFEWS PROHIBITED. (a)
 Notwithstanding any other law, a political subdivision may not
 adopt or enforce an order, ordinance, or other measure that imposes
 a curfew to regulate the movements or actions of persons younger
 than 18 years of age.
        (b)  This section does not apply to a curfew implemented
 under Chapter 418, Government Code, for purposes of emergency
 management.
        SECTION 7.  Section 8.07(e), Penal Code, is amended to read
 as follows:
        (e)  A person who is at least 10 years of age but younger than
 15 years of age is presumed incapable of committing an offense
 described by Subsection (a)(4) or (5)[, other than an offense under
 a juvenile curfew ordinance or order]. This presumption may be
 refuted if the prosecution proves to the court by a preponderance of
 the evidence that the actor had sufficient capacity to understand
 that the conduct engaged in was wrong at the time the conduct was
 engaged in. The prosecution is not required to prove that the actor
 at the time of engaging in the conduct knew that the act was a
 criminal offense or knew the legal consequences of the offense.
        SECTION 8.  The following provisions are repealed:
              (1)  Article 45.059, Code of Criminal Procedure;
              (2)  Section 341.905, Local Government Code;
              (3)  Section 351.903, Local Government Code; and
              (4)  Section 370.002, Local Government Code.
        SECTION 9.  A violation of a juvenile curfew ordinance or
 order may not be prosecuted or adjudicated after the effective date
 of this Act. If on the effective date of this Act a criminal or
 civil action is pending for a violation of a juvenile curfew
 ordinance or order, the action is dismissed on that date. However,
 a final conviction or adjudication for a violation of a juvenile
 curfew ordinance or order that exists on the effective date of this
 Act is unaffected by this Act.
        SECTION 10.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2023.

68Item 5.E.

clerk
Highlight



1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 837-2024 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, TEXAS, 
REPEALING IN ITS ENTIRETY ARTICLE 7.800 “JUVENILE CURFEW” 
OF CHAPTER 7 “OFFENSES AND NUISANCES” OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES. 

 

WHEREAS, the 88th Texas Legislature passed and approved House Bill 1819 
repealing the authority of a political subdivision to adopt or enforce juvenile curfews; and 

WHEREAS, the Village of City of Hilshire Village (the “City”) has adopted and 
enforces a juvenile curfew found in Article 7.800 “Juvenile Curfew” of Chapter 7 “Offenses 
and Nuisances” of the Code of Ordinances known as the “Curfew Ordinance”; and 

WHEREAS, the new law has gone into effect September 1, 2023, making the 
City’s Curfew Ordinance unenforceable. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF HILSHIRE VILLAGE, TEXAS:  

Section 1. Article 7.800 “Juvenile Curfew” of Chapter 7 “Offenses and 
Nuisances” of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, is hereby repealed in its entirety.  

Section 2. Effective date.  This Ordinance shall become effective on 
September 1, 2023. 

Section 3. Repeal. This Ordinance is intended to be cumulative and shall not 
repeal any provision of a previous ordinance or Village Code except to the extent that a 
provision is inconsistent and cannot be reconciled with this ordinance. 

 Section 4. Severability. In the event any clause, phrase, provision, sentence, 
or part of this Ordinance or the application of the same to any person or circumstance 
shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or held unconstitutional by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, it is the intention of the Board of Aldermen that the invalidity or 
unconstitutionality of the one or more parts shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this 
Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision other than the part declared to be invalid 
or unconstitutional; and the Board of Aldermen of the Village of City of Hilshire Village, 
Texas, declares that it would have passed each and every part of the same 
notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to be invalid or 
unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts.  

  

69Item 5.E.



2 

 

PASSED, APPROVED and ADOPTED this, the 20th day of February, 2024. 

 
       
Robert F. Buesinger 
Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
       
Cassie Stephens 
City Secretary 

70Item 5.E.



ORpTNANCE NUMBER 745

AI\ ORDINANCE AMEIIDING CHAPTER 7 OF'FENSES AI\D NUISANCE OF
THE CODE OF ORDTNAIICES OF THE CrTY OF HILSHTRE VILLAGE' TEXAS,
BY REPLACING ARTICLE NO" 7.7OO IN ITS ENTIRETY, AND DELETING AR-
TICLE 3.700, TREE PROTECTTON, OF CHAPTER 3, BUILDING At\D CON-
STRUCTION IN ITS ENTIRETY. ESTABLISHING RULES AND REGULATIONS
CONCERNING TREE PRESERVATION; PROVIDING A PENALTY IN AN
AMOUNT PROVIDED FOR IN SECTION 1.106 OF TI{E CITY'S CODE OF OR.
DINANCES FOR ANY VIOLATION OF AI\-Y PROVISION OF THIS ORI}I.
NANCE; REPEALING ALL ORDINAIICES OR PARTS OF ORDINAI{CES IN-
CONSISTENT OR IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; AI\D PROVIDING FOR SEVER-
ABILITY.

BE IT ORDAIITED BY TIIE CITY COUNCIL OX'THE CITY OX'HILSHIRE YILLAGE.
TEXAS:

Section 1 . The Code of Ordinances of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas (the "Code'), is hereby

amended by replacing Article 7.700 under Chapter 7 Offenses and Nuisance in its entirety, to provide as

follows:

ARTICLE 7.700.. TREE PRESERVATION

Sec. 7.701 - Purpose and Definitions
1. The purpose of this article is to preserve the Tree canopy and continue the wooded character that has been the
hallmark ofthe city since its founding while protecting owners' rights to utilize and enjoy their property by:

a. establishing minimum Tree requirements,

b. requiring careful site planning and the protec'tion of Trees,

c. controlling unnecessary Trce removal,

d. requiring Tree replacement, and

e. prohibiting indiscriminate cutting or clearing of Trees. '
2. Properties used for commercial purposes are exempt from Section 7.701 1(1a) and 1(1b) of this article.

Sec. 7.702 - Definitions
As used in this article, the following words, terms, and phrases shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this
section:

Approved Tr€e List shall mean a list approved and maintained by the city that lists species of Trees that are ap-
proved Jor meetng the minimum tree requirement described in this article.

Building shall mean any structure with a roof and enclosing walls that is used or intended for supporting or shel-
tenng any use or occupancy.

Gircumference or Diameter shall mean circumference or diameter measured at a point on a Tree four
and one-half feet (4%') above the sunounding ground level. The equivalent Circumference or Diameter

Ordinance No. 745 Approved L2-L9-L7 Page 1

71Item 6.A.



may be used for measurement purposes. Tree Diameter in inches x 3.14 = Tree Circumference in
inches. (For example, 6' Diameter X 3.14 = 18.W Circumference). To rneasure a Tree that forks or
has two boles or stems at or below four and one-half feet (4%'), only the Circumference orbiameter of
the larger bole or stem shall be measured.

Critibal Root Zone shall mean the area of a Tree that is within a circle centered on the kunk location, with the
circle's Diameter being one-half of the sum of the longest and shortest drip line Diameters.

Subject Site shall mean, any particular lot, tEct, or parcel of land that is subject to the building permit process or
otherwise invokes the r€gulations estabtished in this arfue.
Tree shall mean a woodyi perennial plant typically having a single stem or trunk, growing to a considerable height
and bearing lateral branches at some distance from the ground.

Tree Removal Permat shall mean a permit issued by the city for the removal of a Tree.

Sec. 7.703 - Minimum Tree Requirement
(1) Each lot shall have one (1) Tree that is eight inches (8") or greater in Diameter ior every 2,OOO square feet of

lot area (excluding any land in the Harris County Flood Control District or utflity easement), rounded to the
nearest whole number (see Table 'l). Trees in the Hanis County Flood Control District or in a utility easement
will not be counted.

(2) lf a lot has less than the number of Trees described in the preceding subsection, the owner shall keep the
number of Trees larger than three inches (3") in Diameter, counting from the largest Diameter to the smallest
Diameter, that are on the lot (excluding any land in the Hanis County Flood Control District or a utility ease-
ment) at the time a Tree Removal Permit is sought or the provisions of this article are otherwise invoked.

(3) A lot owner who is applying for a permit issued under the building permit process of the City's Code of Ordi-
nances for the demolition of, construction of, or addition to any Building, or installation of a swimming pool
shall, regardless of the number or size of the Trees existing on a lot prior to issuance of a permit, plant such
additional Trees as may be necessary to meet the minimum tree requirement described in subsection (1)
above if the owner is:

(a) constructing a new or repfacement Building,

(b) constructing an addition[s] or extension[s] to an existing Building that increases the square footage of
the Building by 40o/o or more, or

(c) installing a swimming pool.

Ordinance No. 745 Approved 12-19-17 Page2

72Item 6.A.



Table I - J{umber of Treesfor Representative Lot Sizes

Lot Size (sq ft) # of Trees

24,OOA 12

22,000 11

20,000 10

18,000 I

16,000 I

14,000 7

12,000 6

10,000 5

8,000 4

Sec. 7.704 - Preservation and Protection of Trees
(1) lt is unlawful to remove any Tree that is eight inches (8') in Diameter or greater without first obtaining a tree

removal permit from the city for each Tree to be removed.

(2) lt is unlawful to remove a Tree that is less than eight inches (8') in Diameter wihout first obtaining a tree re-
moval permit from the city if:

(a) such Tree is required to meet the minimum tree requirement for the lot as described in section
7.703(2), ol

(b) such Tree was planted as a replacement for a previously removed Tree.

(3) lt is unlawtul to intentionally cause serious damage or death to any Tree that is eight inches (8') in Diameter or
greater. Intentionally severing the main hunk or large branches or large roots, girding, poisoning, carving, muti-
lating, touching with live wires, piercing with nails or spikes, crushing of'exposing the roots, or digging or drill-
ing any hole or trench larger than three cubic feet (3 ft3) within the Critical Root Zone, unless no other suitable
location is possible, may be considered acts intended to cause serious damage or death to the Tree.

(4) Before beginning demolition or construction, appropriate protection for all Trees shall be in place. Appropriate
protection shall mean, at a minimum, a fence four feet (4') in height and composed of a material which is
strong enough to prevent vehicles, materials, debris, dirt and other demolition or construction refuse from pil-
ing up within the Critical Root Zone. Where possible, the fence shall be a minimum of six feet (6') away from
the base of the Tree at all poinb to prevent damage to the Tree. lf the location of a tree is less than six feet (6')
from the foundation of the building or the property line, the protective fencing shall be loceted as far as possi-
ble ftom the base of the tree.

Ordinance No. 745 Approved 12-19-17 Page 3

73Item 6.A.



(a) The applicanfs lot will, after removal of the Tree, satisfy the minimum Tree requirement as described
in section 7.703(1),

(b) The Tree is diseased, dying or dead,

(c) Construction is planned in the area where the Tree stands,

(d) The Tree creates a hazard that is or is likely to cause damage to property or danger to the public
health, safety, or welfure, or

, (e) Good arbor management practices indicate removalwill be beneficialto sunounding Trees.

(2) lf the previous subsection is satisfied, the city will issue a Tree Removal Permit if a lot owner crmpletes the
following steps:

(a) Executes the city's Tree Removal Permit application, which includes a certification that, upon removal
of such Tree, either the lot will continue to satisfy the minimum tree requirement as described in sec-
tion 7.703(1) orthe lot owner will comply with Section 7.706 below regarding Tree replacement. lf
concurrent Tree Removal Permits are sought, the minimum tree requirement must be satisfied after
all Trees are removed.

(b) Pays the application fee as adopted by city council. The application fee shall be waived by the city if
the applicant shows that the Tree to be removed is diseased, dying or dead or il afier removal of a
Tree, the lot has more than the minimum Tree requirement in section 7.703(1).

(3) The city shall have a reasonable amount of time, but not less than 3 business days, to review the application.
The city may require an owner to provide cedification by an erborist that the criteria in subsection (1Xb), (d) or
(e) exist.

(4) Removal of a Tree without a Tree Removal Permit shall not constitute a violation of this article if immediate
removal is necessary to protect against a serious and imminent risk to health, safety, or property as a result of
an emergency and, because of such emergency, the lot owner could not obtain the Tree Removal Permit, pro-
vided that, as soon as reasonably possible after such Tree removal, the lot owner submits a Tree Removal
Permit application without the fee and demonstrates that such emergency existed.

(5) The city may require a lot owner to remove any Tree that is damaged, dead or dying, and that the city deems
a dangerto person or property. The Owner shall have fourteen days (14) afier receipt ofthe notice to remove
the Tree.

(6) Removal of a Tree shall be performed by the lot owner or by a reputable Tree removal company, and the
owner shall ensure that the Tree removal work is adequately covered by bond or insurance.

Sec. 7.706 - Replacement of Trees
(1) lf, after loss of or removal of a Tree, a lot does not or will not satisfy the minimum tree requirement as de-

scribed in sec{ion 7.703(1) or (2), as applicable, then the lot owner shall, within 120 days after loss of or re-
moval of such Tree, properly plant a replacement tree from the Approved Tree List. The replecement Tree
shall be at least three inches (3') in Diameter measured at six inches (6") above the grade for each lost or re-
moved Tree. A tree intended as a replacement tree shall not be planted in the Hanis County Flood Control
District or in a utility easement, but nothing in this article is otherwise intended to prohibit the planting of trees
in the Harris County Flood Control District or a utility easement.

(2) \/vith the approval of the city's arborist, a lot owner may plant additional species that are not on, but are similar
in size to those that are on, the Approved Tree List. lf the city's arborist does not approve, the owner may ap-
peal by submitting a written request to city council. Property owners are encouraged (but not required) to plant
Trees native to the Texas Gulf Coast.

(3) In situations of financial hardship, the city will have flexibility in obtaining outside help with re-forestation.

Sec. 7.707 - Tree Suruey
(1) Every permit issued under the building permit process of the City's Code of Ordinances for the demolition ol

construction ol or addition to any Building, or the installation of a swimming pool shall include a Tree survey.

Ordinance No. 745 Approved 12-L9-L7 Page 4

74Item 6.A.



Permit applicants must obtain and complete the proper forms, available in the city office, to show compliance
with this article.

(2) The permit holder will make every effort to maintain the distribution of existing frees. However, if the design,
layout, plans, or construction bf the proposed Building cannot avoid he removal of any Tree that is eight
inches (8") in Diameter (25.12' in Circumference) or larger, then the permit holder shall be required to replace
each removed Tree with a Tree from the Approved Tree List. Each replacement Treashall have a minimum
caliper of three inches (3') in Diameter (9.42" in Circumference).

(3) The Tree suwey shall be prepared by a person with expertise to prepare such a document, such as an archi-
tect, engineer, arborist, or surveyor.

(4) The Tree survey shall acculately reflect, at a minimum, the following information:

(a) The actual location (i.e., funk location), Diameter, and type of each Tree on the Subject Site which is
eight inches (8') in Diameter (25.12' in Circumference) or larger,

(b) Building or structure outlines, parking areas and other paved surfaces, fences, utilities, and other im-
provemenb existing or to be constructed,

(c) The location of Tree protection fences,
(d) A scale, north arrow, name, address, phone number and profession or occupation of the person who

prepared it, and the name of the permit applicant, and

(e) ldentification of the real estate development and a description of the Subject Site and its location.

(f) The location and square footage of utility and flood control easements, and the square footage of the
lot excluding utility and flood control easement square footiage.

Sec. 7.708 - Final Inspection and lssuance of Certificate of Occupancy
At final inspection under every building permit that includes a Tree Survey, the city's inspector shall inspect and
confirm compliance with the Tree survey and planting of required Trees, if any. No certificate of occupancy shall
be issued until the minimum Tree requirement has been met but, if the certificate of occupancy is to be issued
between May and September and the owner has.agreed to meet the Minimum Tree Requirement, a provisional
certificate of occupancy may be issued until such time as the owner has complied.

Sec. 7.709 - Destruction of or Damage to Trees on Public Property
h addition to the violation of any criminal law dealing with destruction of public property, it shall be unlawful to re-
move, desfuoy, kill, or damage any Tree located on any public property in the city except when necessary in fur-
therance of the public health, safety or welfare. This section shall not prevent the city or any public utility from per-
forming necessary maintenance or repair activities that may affect Trees located within easements or on public
property.

Sec. 7.710 - Exemptions from Requirements of this Article
(1) The provisions of this article shall not apply to Trees removed or trimmed within an easement for public or pri-

vate utilities by the easement's owner, or the owne/s emplolee or authorized contractor, or by the utility pro-
vider or its authorized contractor, if the trimming or removal of such Trees is required to properly use or main-
tain the easement. This article shall also not apply to Trees removed or trimmed by the city or its authorized
representative or by the utility provider or its authorized contractor on any public property or within any public
right-otway, including, but not limited to, drainage easements and roadway easements.

(2) lf this article would require a Tree to be planted from May through September in any year, the planting may be
delayed until October of that same year.

Sec..7.7{1 - Enforcement
(1) The city has the authority and right to inspect any property to ensure compliance with this ordinance.

(2) The city may require any lot owner to prove that the owner is in compliance with this ordinance.

Ordinance No. 745 Approved 12-L9-L7 Page 5

75Item 6.A.



(3) The city may withhold, revoke, or suspend any Tree Removal Permit or building permit if any condition or re-
quirement of this article or such permit is not fulfilled.

(4) The city may order an immediate stop to the removal of any Tree, any ac'tivity that is likely to cause serious
damage or death to any Tree; or any demolition or construction of a Building, if such activity is being done in
violation of this ordinance.

(5) The city has the authority to hire a tree inspector for advice in conjunction with enforcing this ordinance.

(6) Anyone that intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or with criminal negligence violates any of the provisions of
this article shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in an amount
as provided for in the general penalty provision in Chapter 1, Section 1.106, of the City's Code of Ordinances.
Each day during which such violation shall exist or occur shall constitute a separate offense" The owner of any
property where any violation of this article occurs and any agent, contractor, builder, architect, individual or
entity that assists in the commission of such offense shall be guilty of a separate offense and, upon conviction
thereof, shall be punished as above provided.

Sec. 7.712 - Appeal
Anyone whose request for a building permit, Tre€ Removal Permit, or certificate of occupancy has been denied
due to the interpretation or application of this article may appeal that decision to the city council by filing a written
notice of appeal with the city. The city council shall provide the applicant an opportinity to present evidence and
arguments demonstrating that the applicant has complied with this article and is entitled to a permit or certificate
of occupancy, and that the city ened in refusing to issue the requested permit or certificate of occupancy. ll at the
conclusion of the hearing, a majority of the city council determines that the applicant is entitled to a permit or cer-
tificate of occupancy, the city shall issue one. Otherwise, the city's denial shall be affirmed.

Ordinance No. 745 Approved 12-19-17 Page 6

76Item 6.A.



Sec. 7.713 - Approved Tree List
Gommon Name Scientific Name Growth Gharacteristics

American Elm
(White Elm)

Ulmus americana Rapid Texas native, reliable fall color, seeds or fruit eaten by
wildlife Deep green leaves turn bright yellow in fall.
Fast- growing, vase-shaped shade trte that tolerates a

wide range of conditions. Dutch elm disease not too bad
in Texas; extensive, shallow root system.

2 Bald Cypress Taxodium
distichum

Moderate Deciduous conifer with feather-like leaves, round seed

balls, and fibrous bark. Adapted to many soil and mois-
ture conditions. Grows well in wet areas. Woody'knees'
develop on wet sites. (Has very aggressive roots - do not
plant near house or sewer lines)

Black Walnut Juglans nigra Moderate Texas native, seeds or fruit eaten by wildlife. Distinctive
shade tree for open spaces. Fruits can be extremely
messy. Webworm can be a problem. Leaves drop early in
the fall.

4 Blackgum
(Black Tu-
pelo)

Nyssa sylvatica Moderate Texas native, rdiable fall color, attractive seeds or fruit,
seeds or fruit eaten by wildlife. Prefers acid soils. Bright
shiny foliage turns red and purple early in the fall. Shal-
low- rooted.

5 Bur Oak
(Mossycup
Oak)

Quercus macrocatpa Slow Texas native, reliable fall color, attractive seeds or fruit,
seeds or fruit eaten by wildlife. Unique leaf shape; large
acorn is enclosed in afuzzy cap. Excellent, drought-toler-
ant native tree, with rough texfure and large acorn.

Bitternut
hickory
(swamp
hickory)

Carya cordiformis Moderate Large pecan hickory with commercial stands located
mostly north of the other pecan hickories.

7 Carolina Bass-
wood (Linden)

Tilia caroliniana Rapid Texas native, showy or fragrant flower, attractive seeds or
fruit. Large, oval shade tree with interesting winged fruits.
Flowers are a favorite of honeybees. Needs plenty of

Cedar Elm Ulmus crassifalia Moderate Texas native, reliable fall color. Fine textured leaves turn
yellow in fall. Tough, drought-tolerant shade tree, well-
adapted to a variety of conditions.

Cherrybark Oak Quercus falcata var. pagodi-
folia

Moderate Texas native, reliable fall color, seeds or fruit eaten by
wildlife. Excellent native shade tree for a variety of plant-
ing situations.

10 Chinkapin Oak Quercus muehlenbergii It is also planted widely as a shade tree suitable for lime-
stone soils. Occurs from northeast Texas to Central
Tsxas and south to the Guadalupe River, and also in the
mountains of West Texas, growing on mostly limestone
soils, especially at the base of bluffs and along stream
courses.

Moderate

:
44 Green Ash F rax in u s pennsylv anica Rapid Texas native, reliable fall color. Tolerates a wide range

of soil conditions. Needs pruning to develop strong
branch strucfure.

Ordinance No. 745 Approved I2-I9-I7 Page 7

77Item 6.A.



Common Name Scientific Name Growth Gharacteristics

12 Laurel Oak Quercus laurifolia
(swamp laurel
oak, diamond- leaf
oak, water oak,
obtusa oak)

Moderate native to the southeastern and south-central the United
States, from coastal Virginia to central Florida and west
to southeast Texas

13 Live Oak (Encino) Quercus virginiana

14 Loblolly Pine Pinus taeda

Rapid Texas native, seeds or fruit eaten by"wildlife. Glossy,
deep green leaves remain all winter; longJived shade

tree. Allow plenty of room; can develop surface roots.

Texas native. Medium-length green needles and large,

brown cones in the fall. Tolerates a wide range of site
conditions, but prefers good drainage.

Rapid

15 Montezuma Cy-
press (Bald Cy-
press)

Taxodium mucronatum Rapid Texas native, attractive seeds or fruit. Delicate, feathery
foliage casts a light shade. Bark is reddish and shredding.

16 Nutall Oak Quercus nuttallii Moderate Grows well on heavy, poorly drained, clay soils depos-
ited by rivers.

17 Overcup Oak Quercus lyrata Moderate Texas native, seeds or fruit eaten by wildlife. Small

. acorns are an important wildlife food source. Tolerates
poor drainage and heavy clay soils. (slow to leaf out in
the spring)

18 Pecan Carya illinainensis Moderate Texas native, seeds or fruit eaten by wildlife. Nuts are an

important wildlife food. Mature crown is open and airy.
State tree of Texhs. Plant with plenty of room. (slow to
leaf out in the spring. Fruit will stain sidewalk)

19 Red Maple Acer rubrum Rapid Texas native, reliable fall color, attractive seeds or fruit.
Flowers and winged fruits in spring are red. Brilliant fall
color, yellow to red. (Bark is easily injured by weed
eater)

2A River Birch Betula nigra Rapid Texas native. Attractive pinkish peeling bark. Works
well as multiple trunk specimen. Prefers moist sites like
stream banks. Susceptible to ice damage. (Needs high ni-
trogen to stay healthy)

21 Shumard Oak Quercus shumardii Rapid Texas native, reliable fall color, seeds or fruit eaten by
wildli.fe. Young trees have "candelabra" shape; fall color
is orange to deep red- Widely available; prefers well-
drained soils. Seed source of trees mav determine suc-
cess.

22 Hybrid Magnolia Liftle Gem or
D.D. Blanchard

Moderate Grows better than the Southern Magnolia

23 Southern Magno-
lia

Magnolia grandiflora Moderate Texas native, showy or fragrant flower, attractive seeds or
.fruit, seeds or fruit eaten by wildlife. Large, white flowers
and glossy, deep green leaves. Plant in well drained soil
and let limbs grow to the ground. Some cultivars tolerate
alkalinitv.

Ordinance No. 745 Apprsved 72-19-17 Page B

78Item 6.A.



Gommon Name Scientific Name Growth Gharacteristics

24 Swamp Chestnut
Oak (Cow Oak)

Quercus. michauxii Moderate , Texas native, reliable fall color, seeds or fruit eaten by
, wildlife. Large leaves turn deep red in fall; large acorns
' are popular with wildlife. Tolerates seasonal poor drain-
: &go, but prefers loamy Soils. ]

25 Sweetgum Li q u i d am b ar sty racifl u a Rapid Texas native, reliable fall color, attractive seeds or fruit.
Distinctive star-shaped leaves and round spiky seed balls.
Rapid, upright growth. Fall colorranges from yellowto
pqrple.

26 Sycamore(Ameri- Platanusaccidentalis
can Planetree)

Rapid Texas native, attractive seeds or fruit. Old bark flakes off
to reveal pale new bark. Round fruit is a mass of small
seeds. Provide plenty of room and a moist site.(Mexican
Sycamore better leaves)

27 ThornlessHoney- Gleditsiatriacanthos
locust var. inermis

Rapid Texas native, reliable fall coloq attractive seeds or fruit,
seeds or fruit eaten by wildlife. Wildlife eat seed pods.

28 Water Oak (Pin
Oak)

Quercus nigra Rapid Texas native, seeds or fruit eaten by wildlife. Dark green

bell-shaped leav€s form a dense canopy'This common
native does best on well drained, moist sites. (after 60
years prone to insects and disease)

29 White Ash Fraxinus americana Rapid Texas native, reliable fall color .Fall color is yellow, or-
ange, and purple. Male trees are seedless. A relatively
clean shade tree. Prefers loamy well-drained soils.

30 White Oak Quercus alba Slow Texas native, reliable fall color, seeds or fruit eaten by
wildlife. Excellent long-lived shade tree. Wildlife eat
acorns. Fall color is red. Wor'ks best on well-drained-
loamv soils.

31 Willow Oak Quercus phellos Rapid Texas native, reliable fall color, seeds or fruit eaten by
wildlife. Narrow, light green leaves turn yellow-brown in
the fall. Fine twigs and strong branch structure. Prefers

moist conditions.

Ordinance No. 745 Approved I2-19-t7 Page 9

79Item 6.A.



Section 2. Any peison who shall intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or with

Criminal negligence violates any provision of this Ordinance, shall be deemed guilty of a rnisde-

meanor ffid, upon conviction, shall be fined in an amount not to exceed $2,000. Each day of vio-

lation shall constitute a separate offense.

Section 3. To the extent there may exist any conflict or inconsistency between the terrns of

any two ordinances ofthe City, the more restrictive ofthe two documents shall prevail and shall be in-

terpreted and enforced according to its own terms.

Section 4. In the event any clause phrase, provision, sentence, oi part of this Ordinance or

the application of the same to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged invalid or

held unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it shall not affect, impair, or invalidate this

Ordinance as a whole or any part or provision hereof other than the part declared to be invalid or uncon-

stitutional; and the City Council of the City of Hilshire Village, Texas, declares that it would have

passed each and every part of the same notwithstanding the omission of any such part thus declared to

be invalid or unconstitutional, whether there be one or more parts.

PASSE,D, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this /9 auvtMs&zott

ATTEST:

Ordinance No. 745 Approved L2-L9-77 Page 10

80Item 6.A.


	Top
	Item 3.A.	Police Report
	SVPD January 2024 Calls
	SVPD Newsletter 2-2024

	Item 3.B.	Building Official Report
	Monthly Building Report - CM 2-20-2024

	Item 3.C.	Engineer Report
	Engineer's Report for February 20, 2024 Council Meeting

	Item 3.D.	Fire Commissioner's Report
	VFD 2024 January Report
	VFD-2023-Annual-Report

	Item 3.F.	City Secretary's Report
	Complaint Issues Log - 2-20-24

	Item 4.B.	Approve Minutes From the Regular Council Meeting
	01-23-2024 Regular Council Meeting Agenda Notes CS

	Item 5.A.	Resolution: Investment Officer
	Resolution #2024-255 Designating Investment Officer

	Item 5.B.	CenterPoint Rejection
	Resolution #2024-256 Denial CNP Rate Case 2024
	Staff Report Re CenterPoint Denial Resolution

	Item 5.D.	Ridgeley Curve NPZ
	Ridgeley No Parking Zone 2-20-2024
	Ordinance # 836-2024 NO PARKING ZONE RIDGELEY DRIVE

	Item 5.E.	Juvenile Curfew Ordinance
	LocalGovCode Title 11., Subtitle C., Chapter 370., Section 370.007 prohibiting juvenile curfews
	Ordinance #742 JUVENILE CURFEW
	88(R) HB 1819 - Introduced version - Bill Text
	Ordinance # 837-2024 Repealing Curfew Ordinance - Hilshire Village

	Item 6.A.	Tree Ordinance (as is)
	Ordinance #745 - Tree Requirements

	Bottom

